

Load Runner 9.0 Training Courseware

By

Softsmith Infotech www.softsmithinfotech.com

Table of Contents

TABLE OF CONTENTS2
LOAD TEST3
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF A LOAD TEST?
LOAD TESTING PROCESS4
LOAD TEST TERMINOLOGIES:4
PERFORMANCE-TESTING EFFORT IN YOUR PROJECT CONTEXT SHOULD INCLUDE:
LOAD RUNNER:7
HOW LOADRUNNER ADDRESSES THE PERFORMANCE TESTING:7
VARIOUS COMPONENTS OF LOADRUNNER:7
WORKING WITH LOADRUNNER8
CONTROLLER21
CREATING LOAD GENERATORS22
DEFINING SLA:23
ABOUT DEFINING SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS23
GRAPH ANALYSIS:

Load Test:

Load Tests are end to end performance tests under anticipated production load. The objective of such tests are to determine the response times for various time critical transactions and business processes and ensure that they are within documented expectations (or Service Level Agreements - SLAs). Load tests also measures the capability of an application to function correctly under load, by measuring transaction pass/fail/error rates.

Load Tests are major tests, requiring substantial input from the business, so that anticipated activity can be accurately simulated in a test environment. If the project has a pilot in production then logs from the pilot can be used to generate 'usage profiles' that can be used as part of the testing process, and can even be used to 'drive' large portions of the Load Test.

Load testing must be executed on "today's" production size database, and optionally with a "projected" database. If some database tables will be much larger in some months time, then Load testing should also be conducted against a projected database. It is important that such tests are repeatable, and give the same results for identical runs. They may need to be executed several times in the first year of wide scale deployment, to ensure that new releases and changes in database size do not push response times beyond prescribed SLAs.

What is the purpose of a Load Test?

The purpose of any load test should be clearly understood and documented. A load test usually fits into one of the following categories:

Quantification of risk. - Determine, through formal testing, the likelihood that system performance will meet the formal stated performance expectations of stakeholders, such as response time requirements under given levels of load. This is a traditional Quality Assurance (QA) type test. Note that load testing does not mitigate risk directly, but through identification and quantification of risk, presents tuning opportunities and an impetus for remediation that will mitigate risk.

Determination of minimum configuration. - Determine, through formal testing, the minimum configuration that will allow the system to meet the formal stated performance expectations of stakeholders - so that extraneous hardware, software and the associated cost of ownership can be minimized. This is a Business Technology Optimization (BTO) type test.

Assessing release readiness by: Enabling you to predict or estimate the performance characteristics of an application in production and evaluate whether or not to address performance concerns based on those predictions. These predictions are also valuable to the stakeholders who make decisions about whether an application is ready for release or capable of handling future growth, or whether it requires a performance improvement/hardware upgrade prior to release.

What functions or business processes should be load tested?

Basis for inclusion in Load Test	Comment
	The most frequently used transactions have the potential
High frequency transactions	to impact the performance of all of the other transactions
	if they are not efficient.
	The more important transactions that facilitate the core
Mission Critical transactions	objectives of the system should be included, as failure
Wission Chucai transactions	under load of these transactions has, by definition, the
	greatest impact.
	At least one READ ONLY transaction should be included,
Read Transactions	so that performance of such transactions can be
	differentiated from other more complex transactions.
	At least one update transaction should be included so that
Update Transactions	performance of such transactions can be differentiated
	from other transactions.

Load Testing Process

- Identify the performance-critical scenarios.
- Identify the workload profile for distributing the entire load among the key scenarios.
- Identify the metrics that you want to collect in order to verify them against your Performance objectives.
- Design tests to simulate the load.
- Use tools to implement the load according to the designed tests, and capture the metrics.
- > Analyze the metric data captured during the tests.

Load Test Terminologies:

Scenarios are anticipated user paths that generally incorporate multiple application activities. Key scenarios are those for which you have specific performance goals, those considered to be high-risk, those that are most commonly used, or those with a significant performance impact. The basic steps for identifying key scenarios are.

Metrics are measurements obtained by running performance tests as expressed on a commonly understood scale. Some metrics commonly obtained through performance tests include processor utilization over time and memory usage by load.

Response time is a measure of how responsive an application or subsystem is to a client request.

Throughput is the number of units of work that can be handled per unit of time; for instance, requests per second, calls per day, hits per second, reports per year, etc.

Workload is the stimulus applied to a system, application, or component to simulate a usage pattern, in regard to concurrency and/or data inputs. The workload includes the total number of users, concurrent active users, data volumes, and transaction volumes, along with the transaction mix. For performance modeling, you associate a workload with an individual scenario.

Resource utilization is the cost of the project in terms of system resources. The primary resources are processor, memory, disk I/O, and network I/O.

Scalability refers to an application's ability to handle additional workload, without adversely affecting performance, by adding resources such as processor, memory, and storage capacity.

Performance requirements are those criteria that are absolutely non-negotiable due to contractual obligations, service level agreements (SLAs), or fixed business needs. Any performance criterion that will not unquestionably lead to a decision to delay a release until the criterion passes is not absolutely required — and therefore, not a requirement.

Performance-testing effort in your project context should include:

- **Project vision.** Before beginning performance testing, ensure that you understand the current project vision. The project vision is the foundation for determining what performance testing is necessary and valuable. Revisit the vision regularly, as it has the potential to change as well.
- **Purpose of the system.** Understand the purpose of the application or system you are testing. This will help you identify the highest-priority performance characteristics on which you should focus your testing. You will need to know the system's intent, the actual hardware and software architecture deployed, and the characteristics of the typical end user.
- **Customer or user expectations.** Keep customer or user expectations in mind when planning performance testing. Remember that customer or user satisfaction

is based on expectations, not simply compliance with explicitly stated requirements.

- Business drivers. Understand the business drivers such as business needs or opportunities – that are constrained to some degree by budget, schedule, and/or resources. It is important to meet your business requirements on time and within the available budget.
- **Reasons for testing performance.** Understand the reasons for conducting performance testing very early in the project. Failing to do so might lead to ineffective performance testing. These reasons often go beyond a list of performance acceptance criteria and are bound to change or shift priority as the project progresses, so revisit them regularly as you and your team learn more about the application, its performance, and the customer or user.
- Value that performance testing brings to the project. Understand the value that performance testing is expected to bring to the project by translating the project- and business-level objectives into specific, identifiable, and manageable performance testing activities. Coordinate and prioritize these activities to determine which performance testing activities are likely to add value.
- **Project management and staffing.** Understand the team's organization, operation, and communication techniques in order to conduct performance testing effectively.
- **Process.** Understand your team's process and interpret how that process applies to performance testing. If the team's process documentation does not address performance testing directly, extrapolate the document to include performance testing to the best of your ability, and then get the revised document approved by the project manager and/or process engineer.
- **Compliance criteria.** Understand the regulatory requirements related to your project. Obtain compliance documents to ensure that you have the specific language and context of any statement related to testing, as this information is critical to determining compliance tests and ensuring a compliant product. Also understand that the nature of performance testing makes it virtually impossible to follow the same processes that have been developed for functional testing.

• **Project schedule.** Be aware of the project start and end dates, the hardware and environment availability dates, the flow of builds and releases, and any checkpoints and milestones in the project schedule.

Load Runner:

HP LoadRunner, a tool for performance testing, stresses your entire application to isolate and identify potential client, network, and server bottlenecks.

HP LoadRunner load tests your application by emulating an environment in which multiple users work concurrently. While the application is under load, LoadRunner accurately measures, monitors, and analyzes a system's performance and functionality.

How LoadRunner Addresses the Performance Testing:

- LoadRunner reduces personnel requirements by replacing human users with virtual users or Vusers. These Vusers emulate the behavior of real users operating real applications.
- Because numerous Vusers can run on a single computer, LoadRunner reduces the amount of hardware required for testing.
- The HP LoadRunner Controller allows you to easily and effectively control all the Vusers—from a single point of control.
- LoadRunner monitors the application performance online, enabling you to finetune your system during test execution.
- LoadRunner automatically records the performance of the application during a test. You can choose from a wide variety of graphs and reports to view the performance data.
- LoadRunner checks where performance delays occur: network or client delays, CPU performance, I/O delays, database locking, or other issues at the database server. LoadRunner monitors the network and server resources to help you improve performance.
- Because LoadRunner tests are fully automated, you can easily repeat them as often as you need.

Various Components of LoadRunner:

Vuser Generator:

Vuser Generator is the Script generation component of LoadRunner. This component has two main things and are described below:

Vusers In the scenario, LoadRunner replaces human users with virtual users or Vusers. When you run a scenario, Vusers emulate the actions of human users working with your application. While a workstation accommodates only a single human user, many Vusers can run concurrently on a single workstation. In fact, a scenario can contain tens, hundreds, or even thousands of Vusers.

Vuser Scripts. The actions that a Vuser performs during the scenario are described in Vuser script. When you run a scenario, each Vuser executes a Vuser script. The Vuser scripts include functions that measure and record the performance of your application's components.

Controller. You use the HP LoadRunner Controller to manage and maintain your scenarios. Using the Controller, you control all the Vusers in a scenario from a single workstation.

Load Generator. When you execute a scenario, the Controller distributes each Vuser in the scenario to a load generator. The load generator is the machine that executes the Vuser script, enabling the Vuser to emulate the actions of a human user.

Performance analysis. Vuser scripts include functions that measure and record system performance during load-testing sessions. During a scenario run, you can monitor the network and server resources. Following a scenario run, you can view performance analysis data in reports and graphs.

Working with LoadRunner

When testing or monitoring an environment, you need to emulate the true behavior of users on your system. HP testing tools emulate an environment in which users concurrently work on, or access your system. To do this emulation, the human was replaced with a virtual user, or a Vuser. The actions that a Vuser performs are described in a Vuser script. The primary tool for creating Vuser scripts is the Virtual User Generator, **VuGen**.

Vusers emulate the actions of human users by performing typical business processes in your application. The actions that a Vuser performs during the recording session are described in a Vuser script.

Using VuGen, you can run scripts as standalone tests. Running scripts from VuGen is useful for debugging as it enables you to see how a Vuser will behave and which enhancements need to be made.

Steps for Creating Scripts:

VuGen enables you to record a variety of Vuser types, each suited to a particular load testing environment or topology. When you open a new test, VuGen displays a complete list of the supported protocols.



This window opens up as soon as you open the VuGen. You can select the protocol of you application and click ok. For most of the web application its Web (HTTP/HTML) Protocol

Open VuGen

To start VuGen, choose Start > Programs > <*App_Name*> (for example LoadRunner) > Applications > Virtual User Generator from the Start menu.

- > To open an existing script, not in the recent list, click Open Existing Script.
- > To create a new script using a recent protocol, click the protocol in the

Recently used protocols list.

To create a new script in a protocol that is not listed, click New Vuser Script.

Choose File > Zip Operations > Import From Zip File ... to open an existing cript from a zip archive.

🤣 HP Virtual User G	enerator - [Start Page]	
<u>Eile ⊻iew T</u> ools	Window Help	
🗄 🎝 📲 🗁 📲 🔚] 🗄 🛛 Start Record 🕨 🔳 🔢 🐯 🛛 🎲 🎲 🎝 🐴 🗊 🕴 Tasks 🛛 📰	Script 🛐 Tree 🛛 🔂 🚺 💽 🗈
Start Page		
Wirtual Use	er Generator	
Scripts	Online Resources What's New	
New Script		
Recently use	ed protocols	
🧭 Web (Cli	ick and Script)	
🔄 🗵 Web (HT	FTP/HTML)	
Nom Via	car Scrint	
	N	
	4	Welcome to the Virtual U
		physical machines with "
Open Script	t	create load on a system
Recently use	ed scripts	transactions that enable
COReg		information to help you l
		The Virtual User Generat
Open E:	xisting Script	principle. As you walk th

Now click on the New Protocol Script and you will see the following Window. From this window you have to choose the protocol on which the application you are going to load test works.

VuGen provides a variety of Vuser technologies that allow you to emulate your system. Each technology is suited to a particular architecture and results in a specific type of Vuser script. For example, you use Web Vuser Scripts to emulate users operating Web browsers. You use FTP Vusers to emulate an FTP session. The various Vuser technologies can be used alone or together, to create effective load tests or Business Process Monitor profiles.

New Virtual User		×
New Single Protocol Script New Multiple Protocol Script Different New Script Recent Protocols	New Single Protocol Script Category : Popular Protocols Citrix_ICA Microsoft Remote Desktop Protocol (RDP) Oracle (2-Tier) Oracle NCA SAPGUI Web (Click and Script) Web (HTTP/HTML) Web Services	
	Web (Click and Script) Emulation of the communication between a web browser and the web server at user-action level	
	OK Cancel	

Now set the General options for VuGen.

For Example To set the environment-related options:

- Select Tools > General Options and click the Environment tab.
- To save the current script information for auto recovery, select the Save AutoRecover Information option and specify the time in minutes between the saves.
- To set the editor font, click Select Font. The Font dialog box opens. Select the desired font, style, and size and click OK. Note that only fixed size fonts (Courier, Lucida Console, FixedSys, and so on) are available.
- To use a comparison tool other than WDiff, select Use custom comparison tool and then specify or browse for the desired tool.
- Click OK to accept the settings and close the General Options dialog box.

Now Set the Recording Options for recording the user actions of the application under load test.

🤣 HP Virtual User Generator - [nonai	me12	- Wel	b (Click and Script)]
<u>Eile Edit V</u> iew Insert V <u>u</u> ser <u>A</u>	<mark>ct</mark> ions	Too	ls <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp
🗄 🎦 🔹 🗁 🔹 🔚 🕴 🥥 Start Recor	d 🕨	ß	Performance Center Connection
Start Page noname12 - Web (Click a	nd Sci	R	Quality Center Connection
vuser_init	Ac {	1	Create Controller Scenario
💋 vuser_end	}		Compare with Script
🕬 globals.h			Compare Snapshots
			Regenerate <u>S</u> cript
			EBCDIC Translation F7
			<u>G</u> eneral Options
		: P	Recording Options Ctrl+F7
			C <u>u</u> stomize
			Compare XML Files

General General Recording General Recording GUI Level GUI Poeties Advanced Web Event Configuration HTTP / HTML Level HTTP / HTML Level Orrelation UBL-based script HTTP / htmL Level OK Correlation UBL-based script UBL-based script UBL-dayanced Advanced TML Soript Upe: OK S	Recording Options		Ľ
General Script - Script - Recording GUI Level GUI based script - Advanced - Web Event Configuration - Port Mapping ITTP / HTML Level - Port Mapping ITTP / HTML Level - Advanced ItTP / HTML Level - Advanced ItTP / HTML Level - Correlation ItTP / HTML Script type: ItTP / HTML Correlation ItTP / HTML Script type: ItTP / Choose - Advanced ItTP / Properties - Advanced ItTP / ItTML Level - Correlation ItTP / HTML - Correlation ItTP / HTML - Correlation ItTML / Advanced - Advanced ItTML / Concerciting user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) Cancel A script containing explicit URLs only (e.g. web_url, web_submit_data) ItTML / Concerciting user actions (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Its Defaults ItTML Its Correlation Its Correlation Its Correlation ItTML / Concerciting user actions (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Its Correlation ItTML / Move the mouse over any item	_ \/	- General: Recording	
- Script GUI Level - GUI Poperties - Advanced - Network - Port Mapping HTTP / HTML Level ITTP / HTML Level - Advanced © UIL-based script HTTP / Properties - Advanced - Advanced © UIRL-based script URL-based script URL-based script Mutual Script type: Correlation © A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) Script type: © A script containing explicit URLs only (e.g. web_url, web_submit_data) Non HTML-generated elements (e.g.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image: Point Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups © Do not record Hint: Move the mouse over any item to see its description. web	General	deficient. Recording	
- Hecoding - GUI Properties - Advanced - Network - Port Mapping HTTP / HTML Level - Advanced - Correlation O URL-based script HTML-based script O URL-based script HTML Advanced - Correlation O URL-based script URL-based script OR O URL-based script OR - Correlation O URL-based script URL-based script OR - Correlation O URL-based script OR - Correlation O URL-based script OR - Correlation O URL-based script O URL-based script O Correlation O O Not record O Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) O Non HTML-generated elements cipt step O Non trecord Hint: Move the mouse over any item to see its description.	- Script		
BUIlPropetites Advanced - Web Event Configuration HTTP / HTML Level - HTTP / Poptities IHTML/based script - Advanced IHTML/based script - Advanced Image: Correlation - Correlation Image: Correlation Image: Correlation Image: Co	Recording	GUI Level	
Advanced Web Event Configuration Network - Pott Mapping HTTP / HTML Level - Advanced - Correlation WIL-based script HTML/ - Advanced HTML - Advanced HTML - Advanced HTML - Advanced HTML - Chrose as howt - M script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) - A script containing explicit URLs only (e.g. web_unt, web_submit_data) - Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) - Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups - Do not record - Hint - Move the mouse over any item to see its description.	- GUI Properties		
HTTP / HTML Level - Port Mapping HTTP Properties - Advanced - Correlation UBL-based script - HTML/ Script type: - OK Cancel - HTML/ Choose as how t - Script type: - A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) - A script containing explicit UBLs only (e.g. web_url, web_submit_data) - Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) - Record within the current script step - Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups - Do not record - Hint: - Move the mouse over any item to see its description.	Advanced		
HTTP / HTML Level HTTP / HTML Level HTTP Properties Advanced Correlation URL-based script HTML / Advanced Advanced Correlation URL-based script URL-based script URL-based script URL-based script URL / Advanced Advanced FMTML / Choose as howt Image: Correlation OK Cancel OK Cancel Image: Correlation	Web Event Configuration		
HTTP Properties Advanced Correlation URL-based script HTML / Advanced Advanced HTML Script URL-based script URLAdvanced Advanced HTML Script URL advanced Advanced HTML Choose as how A script containing explicit URLs only (e.g. web_unl, web_submit_data) Cancel Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Prove the mouse over any item to see its description. Hint: Move the mouse over any item to see its description.	- Network	HTTP/HTMLLevel	
Advanced Correlation HTML/ Correlation Image based script URL Advanced Advanced HTML Image based script Image based script HTML/ Choose as how t A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) as how t Image based script Mon HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image based within the current script step Record within the current script step Image based over any item to see its description. Hint:		HTML-based script HTML Advanced	
Correlation URL-based script URL Advanced Advanced HTML X Script type: OK Choose as how t A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) Cancel Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) © Precord within the current script step © Do not record Hint: Move the mouse over any item to see its description. Image: the mouse over any item to see its description.	Advanced		
HTML4 Advanced HTML Choose as howt OK OK Cancel Image: Construction of the second s	Correlation		
Advanced HTML X Script type: OK Choose as howt		O URL-based script URL Advanced	
HTML/ Choose as how t Script type: OK Choose as how t • A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) • A script containing explicit URLs only (e.g. web_urt, web_submit_data) OK Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image: Construction of the course of the		Advanced HTML	
HTML/ Choose as how t CA Cancel Choose as how t CA Cancel Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image: Construction of the construction o			
Choose as how t A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form) Cancel Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) P C Record within the current script step C Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups C Do not record Hint: Move the mouse over any item to see its description.		HTML 4 OK	
as how t Image: Cancel A script containing explicit URLs only (e.g. web_urt, web_submit_data) Use Defaults Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image: Cancel Image: Cancel		Choose 🚓 💿 A script describing user actions (e.g. web_link, web_submit_form)	
Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction of the current script step Image: Construction		as how t	
Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets) Use Defaults Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current script step Image: Construct of the current step Image: Construct of the current step Image: Construct of the current step Image: Construct of the current step Image: Constep Image: Construct o			
Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets)		Use Defaults	
Record within the current script step Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups Do not record Hint Move the mouse over any item to see its description.		Non HTML-generated elements (e.g. JavaScript, VBScript, ActiveX, Applets)	
Hint Move the mouse over any item to see its description.		Becord within the current script step.	
C Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups O Do not record Hint Move the mouse over any item to see its description.			
C Do not record Hint Move the mouse over any item to see its description.		C Record in separate steps and use concurrent groups	
Hint Move the mouse over any item to see its description.		C Do not record	
Hint Move the mouse over any item to see its description.			
Move the mouse over any item to see its description.		- Hint	
		Move the mouse over any item to see its description.	
			Ţ.
		p	
			-

Now that you are ready for recording Click on the record button



Give the Url of the application that needs to be load tested like the one below

Start Recording		? ×
Application type :	Internet Applications	
Program to record :	Microsoft Internet Explorer	▼
URL Address :	http://127.0.0.1:1080/WebTours/	-
Working directory :	C:\Program Files\Mercury\LoadRunner\bin\	▼
Record into A	Action	New
Record the applie	cation startup	
Options	ОК	Cancel

The following table describes the criteria for determining the business functions or processes to be included while recording

Basis for inclusion in Load Test	Comment
	The most frequently used transactions have the potential to
High frequency transactions	impact the performance of all of the other transactions if
	they are not efficient.
	The more important transactions that facilitate the core
Mission Critical transactions	objectives of the system should be included, as failure
Wission Critical transactions	under load of these transactions has, by definition, the
	greatest impact.
	At least one READ ONLY transaction should be included,
Read Transactions	so that performance of such transactions can be
	differentiated from other more complex transactions.
Update Transactions	At least one update transaction should be included so that

performance of such transactions can be differentiated
from other transactions.

Now record the transaction in either Vuser_init or Vuser_end or action by using the recording tool bar.

Recording (25 events).	
🦲 🕨 🔳 🔢 😳 Action	- 📁 🏟 🔄 🔹 😨

Once the recording is over a recording log is also generated

To view a log of the messages that were issued during recording, click the Recording Log tab. You can set the level of detail for this log in the advanced tab of the Recording options.

▶ Repla	yLog [Bacon	ding Log 📔 🏅	Correlation Rec	ulto 📔 🛃 Gene	ration Log	
lyzer	(7e0:	3d4)]	Request	Connection	: Renate Se	rver @ 192	2.168. 🔺
	(<u>7</u> e0:	104)]	"GET /"		-		1.0
lyzer	(2∈0:	1=4)]	(Sid:	 Client 	-> Server	: 554 byte	es (Se
lyzer	(7в0:	104)]	(Sid:	1) Server	\rightarrow Client	: 2920 byt	tes (
lyzer	(7e0:	1c4)]	(5id:	1) Server	-> Client	: 643 byte	es (S
	(7∈0 :	$1 \subset 4$)]	"GET ∠Iı	nage2.gif"			
lyzer	(7в0:	104)]	(Sid:	1) Client	-> Server	: 590 byte	as (Se
lyzer	(7e0:	1c4)]	(5id:	1) Server	\rightarrow Client	: 2920 byt	tes (
lyzer	(7=0 :	1⊂4)]	(Sid:	 Server 	-> Client	: 2931 byt	tes (
lyzer	(7в0:	7d8)]	Address	lookup for	us.update.	conpanion.	yahod
lyzer	(7e0:	7d8)]	Address	lookup for	nagrit = 2	12.199.91.	86
lyzer	(2⊜0:	7 <u>48</u>)]	Request	Connection	Renote Se	rver @ 66.	94.23
lyzer	(7в0:	740)j	Address	lookup for	ofg.nywebs	earch.com	= 63.💌
4							E F

Now the script will be generated for the recorded user actions and will be displayed like this

Start Page noname12 - Web (Click an	nd Script)
💋 vuser_init	Action()
Action	(
💋 vuser end	web_url("WebTours"
🧼 globals.h	"URL=http://127.0.0.1:1080/WebTours/", "Resource=0"
	"RecContentType=text/html", "Referer=".
	"Snapshot=t1.inf",
	LAST):
~	<pre>lr_think_time(14);</pre>
G	<pre>web_submit_form("login.pl", "Competent 12 inf"</pre>
	ITEMDATA
	"Name=username", "Value=jojo", ENDITEM,
	"Name=password", "Value=bean", ENDITEM, "Name=login x" "Value=47" ENDITEM
	"Name=login.y", "Value=5", ENDITEM,
	LAST);
6	<pre>> web_image("SignOff Button".</pre>
	"Shapshot=t3.inf",
	LAST):
	return 0:
Replay Log Recording Log	2 Generation Log
[Network Analyzer (470:	1001
[Network Analyzer (470:	1bc)] Load Network Traffic Analyzers:
[Network Analyzer (470:	1bc)] Analyzer Module: WPLUS (value=)
[Network Analyzer (470:	<pre>ibc)] Analyzer Module: webBase (value=Gethttprotocolanalyzer:api_http_liter.dl)) + Network Analyzer: api http filter.dl)@GetHttpProtocolAnalyzer Loaded!</pre>
[Network Analyzer (470:	<pre>lbc)] + Interception Auditors: WinInetWplusInterceptionAudit:api_http_filter.dll</pre>
[Network Analyzer (470:	1bc)] Analyzer Module: WebUI (value=)
[Network Analyzer (470:	<pre>lbc)] Analyzer Module: WebJS (value=) lbc)] Analyzer Module: VebJS (value=)</pre>
[Network Analyzer (470:	hbc)]

The above one is called the Script view. It can also be viewed as Tree view

Tree view:



The Next step is enhance the script

This includes

- 1) Inserting Transaction statements
- 2) Log messages
- 3) Comments
- 4) Inserting Functions
- 5) Performing Correlation
- 6) Parameterize
- 7) Inserting Rendezvous Points
- 8) Doing some run time settings.

To Insert Inserting Transaction statements Log messages, Comments, Inserting Functions

🔞 HP Virtual User I	Sene	rato	r – Eno	name12	- Weh (Click an	d Sc	
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew	Inse	rt	V <u>u</u> ser	<u>A</u> ctions	<u>T</u> ools	<u>W</u> indov	v į	
: 🔄 + 🗁 + 🗄	4	<u>N</u> ew	Step		Alt	+Insert	1	
Start Page nonam	4	<u>S</u> tar	t Trans	action		Ctrl+T		
🥩 vuser_init	4	<u>E</u> nd	Transa	ction		Ctrl+D		
🥩 Action	***	<u>R</u> endezvous						
🥩 vuser_end		⊆om	ment				Wel ht:	
(globals. II		Log	<u>M</u> essag	je 📐			\mathbf{ur}	
		New	/ <u>P</u> aram	eter			on re: sho	
	-	Tog	gle Brea	akpoint		F9	=H' ;	

Now you need to perform Correlation in the script. The purpose of Correlation is

To simplify or optimize your code

For example, if you perform a series of dependent queries one after another, your code may become very long. To reduce the size of the code, you can nest the queries, but then you lose precision and the code becomes complex and difficult to understand. Correlating the statements enables you to link queries without nesting.

To generate dynamic data

Many applications and Web sites identify a session by the current date and time. If you try to replay a script, it will fail because the current time is different than the recorded time. Correlating the data enables you to save the dynamic data and use it throughout the scenario run.

The main steps in correlating a script are:

1 After Running the script once click on can for correlation button



2 Determine which value to correlate.

For most protocols, you can view the problematic statements in the Execution log. You doubleclick an error message and jump directly to its location. Alternatively, you can use the WDiff utility distributed with VuGen to determine the inconsistencies within your script. For more information, see

3 Save the results.

You save the value of a query to a variable using the appropriate function. The correlating functions are protocol-specific. Correlation function names usually contain the string save_param, such as web_reg_save_param and lrs_save_param. Refer to the specific protocol

chapters for an explanation on how to perform correlation. In several protocols, such as database and Web, VuGen automatically inserts the functions into your script.

4 Reference the saved values.

Replace the constants in the query or statement with the saved variables.

Now you can Insert Parameterization Statements

Steps for parameterization:

- Locate the argument you want to parameterize
- ➢ Give the parameter a name
- Select a parameter type
- Define properties for the parameter type
- ▶ Replace the argument with a parameter
- \triangleright

```
ii_onink_oimo(iky);
 ITEMDATA,
       "Name=username", "Value=<mark>joj</mark>
"Name=password", "Value=bea
"Name=login.x", "Value=47",
"Name=login.y", "Value=5",
                                                        ENDITEM
                                                   <u>ц и</u>
                                                                                              Ctrl+Z
                                                   5
                                                        Undo
                                                    γ.
                                                       Cut
                                                                                              Ctrl+X
       LAST);
                                                   5
                                                                                              Ctrl+C
                                                        ⊆ору
 web_image("SignOff Button",
                                                   3
                                                                                              Ctrl+V
                                                       Paste
        'Alt=SignOff Button",
       "Snapshot=t3.inf",
       LAST) :
                                                        Go to Line...
                                                                                              Ctrl+G
                                                                                              Ctrl+E
                                                        Go to Step in Replay Log
 return 0;
                                                                                                     ۲
                                                        Insert
                                                    ۰
                                                        Toggle Breakpoint
                                                                                                  F9
eneration Log
                                                        Open Script Directory
r 9.0.0 for WIN2000; WebReplay82
                                                        Replace with alternative navigation
ocuments and Settings\Administra
                                                        Replace with a Parameter
                                                        Scan for Correlations (at Cursor)
                                                                                              Alt+F8
burce "http://127.0.0.1:1080/Web
burce "http://127.0.0.1:1080/Web
sttp://127.0.0.1:1080/WebTours/il
                                                        Expand / Collapse
                                                                                                     •
```

Once you click like the above one you need to give the name for the parameter as in below one

Select or Create	Parameter	? 🗙
Parameter name:	NewParam	•
Parameter type:	Fie	-
Driginal value:	Action1	
DK	Cancel	Properties

Then Select a parameter type.

Define properties for the parameter type.

Replace the argument with the parameter.

Once you do it the parameterization window will look like this.

File path: Namex dat 💌 Browse
Add Column Add Row Delste Column Delste Row
NewPoran 1 1 Jim Taylor 2 Bob Smith 3 John Jones
Edit with Notspad Data Wizard
Select column
📀 By number: 🚺 👘 Column definiter: Comma 💌
C By name: First data line 1
Select rest row Unique
Update value on: Each iteration
When out of values Continue with last value
Allocate Vuser values in the Controller
C Automatically allocate block size
Alocate 2 values for each Vuser

Now you can insert rendezvous point in the script

When performing load testing, you need to emulate heavy user load on your system. To accomplish this, you synchronize Vusers to perform a task at exactly the same moment. You configure multiple Vusers to act simultaneously by creating a *rendezvous point*. When a Vuser arrives at the rendezvous point, it waits until all Vusers participating in the rendezvous arrive. When the designated number of Vusers arrive, the Vusers are released.

To insert a rendezvous point:

 While recording a Vuser script, click the Rendezvous button on the Recording toolbar. The Rendezvous dialog box opens.

Rendezv	ous		X
*	Rendezvous Name :	DK	Cancel

2 Type a name for the rendezvous point in the Rendezvous Name box.

Note: The name for the rendezvous point is not case sensitive. For example, the Vuser recognizes Rendezvous1 and rendezvous1 as the same point.

Click OK. VuGen inserts lr_rendezvous into the Vuser script. For example, the following function defines a rendezvous point named rendezvous1:

```
Ir_rendezvous("rendezvous1");
```

3 To insert rendezvous points into your script after the recording session, select Insert > Rendezvous from the VuGen toolbar.

Now you can set the run time settings

Now we can run the script in stand alone mode to check if the scripts are running properly



Once the scripts are running fine in stand alone mode, these scripts can be placed in controller for funning the load test.

Controller

To open the Controller:

You can open the Controller by choosing either of the following:

- Start > Programs > LoadRunner > Applications > Controller.
- ➤ Start > Programs > LoadRunner > LoadRunner. The HP LoadRunner
- launcher window opens. Select the Load Testing tab, and then click Run Load Tests.

If the New Scenario dialog box does not open on startup, you can open it by choosing File > New or by clicking the New button on the Controller toolbar.

New Scenario	E	ĸ								
Select Scenario Type										
Manual Scenario										
Manage your load test by specifying the number of virtual users to run										
🔲 Use the Percentage Mode	to distribute the Yusers among the scripts									
C Goal-Driented Scenario										
Allow LoadRunner Controller to	create a scenario based on the goals you specify									
Select the script(s) you would like to use in y Available Scripts Available Scripts Car_Rental Car_Rental Car_Rental Car_Rental Car_St test1 Car_St test1 Car_St test2 Car_St test3 Car_St test5 East4 Car_St t	Scripts in Scenario									
Show at startup	OK Cancel Hap									

Once the Scenario is opened we can do the following

- 1) Controlling the number of Virtual Users
- 2) Setting up the SLA
- 3) Define the group name, Vuser quantity, load generators, and scripts for the Vuser group
- 4) Add and configure one or more scripts to the Vuser group
- 5) Enable or disable a Vuser group for the scenario
- 6) Remove a Vuser group from the scenario
- 7) Setting up the Run Duration
- 8) Setting up Load generators
- 9) Defining the run pattern by using Ramp up and ramp down

Selecting the Scenario Type

Select one of the following scenario options:

Manual Scenario. Select this method if you want to build a manual scenario. You build a manual scenario by creating groups and specifying the script, the load generator, and the number of Vusers included in each group.

Use the Percentage Mode to distribute the Vusers among the scripts. Select this option if you want to build a manual scenario by specifying a number of Vusers to be distributed among the selected Vuser scripts.

Goal Oriented Scenario. Select this method to have LoadRunner build a scenario for you. In a goal-oriented scenario, you define the goals you want your test to achieve, and LoadRunner automatically builds a scenario for you, based on these goals.

To create Vuser Groups:

1 On the Scenario Groups pane toolbar, click the Add Group button. The Add Group dialog box opens:

Add Group			×
Group Name: Load Generator Name: Select Script Selipt Name: test2	tast2_1	Vusei Quarkty: 10 불	OK Canod Help
Soript Path: D: \Progr	am Filas\Mercury Interactive EJB_sample imode test test2.1	VLoadRunner/scripts/test2	😅 Browse

- 2 In the Group Name box, enter a name for the Vuser group.
- **3** From the Vuser Quantity box, select the number of Vusers that you want to create in the group.

Creating Load Generators

Select a load generator from the Load Generator Name list. To use a load generator that does not appear, select **Add** from the Load Generator Name list. The Add New Load Generator dialog box opens:

Add New Load Ge	×	
Name:		DK
Platform	Windows 💌	Cancel
Temporary directory:		Həlp
🗵 Enable load gene	rator to take part in the scenario	Mare ¥

Type the name of the load generator in the Name box. In the Platform box, select the type of platform on which the load generator is running.

Defining SLA:

An SLA is a formally negotiated agreement between two parties. It is a contract that exists between customers and their service provider, client or between service providers. It records the common understanding about services, priorities, responsibilities, guarantee, and such — collectively, the *level of service*. For example, it may specify the levels of availability, serviceability, performance, operation, or other attributes of the service like billing and even penalties in the case of violation of the SLA.

About Defining Service Level Agreements

When you design a load test scenario, you can define goals or service level agreements (SLAs) for the performance metrics. When you run the scenario, LoadRunner gathers and stores performance-related data. When you analyze the run, Analysis compares this data against the SLAs and determines SLA statuses for the defined measurements.

Depending on the measurements that you are evaluating, LoadRunner Determines SLA statuses in one of the following ways:

SLA status determined per time interval within the run. Analysis displays SLA statuses at set time intervals—for example, every 10 seconds—over a timeline within the run.

SLA status determined over the whole run. Analysis displays a single SLA status for the whole scenario run.

To define an SLA for Average Transaction Response Time:

1 Open the Service Level Agreement Wizard.

- If you are working in Analysis: Select Tools > Configure SLA Rules to open the Service Level Agreement dialog box. Click New.
- If you are working in the Controller: In the Design tab, in the Service Level Agreement pane, click New.

The Service Level Agreement wizard opens.

2 Complete the SLA Wizard steps, as described in the following sections.

Measurement—Select a Measurement for Your Goal

For Average Transaction Response Time, LoadRunner evaluates SLA statuses at set time intervals within the run.

Under SLA status determined per time interval within the run, select Average Transaction Response Time.

Transactions—Select Transactions

From the Available Transactions list, select the transactions that you want to evaluate as part of your SLA and click Add.

Note: You can select multiple transactions using the CTRL key.

The transactions you selected are displayed in the Selected Transactions list.

Load Criteria—Set Load Criteria

Select load criteria for your goal and define appropriate load value ranges.

Service Level Agreer	ment - Goal Definition
	Service Level Agreement - Goal Definition
LoadRunnet Service Level Agreement	Select a Measurement for Your Goal Select a measurement from one of the categories below. Note: Load criteria can be defined only when selecting measurements whose SLA statuses are determined at time intervals over a timeline. SLA status determined at time intervals over a timeline Average Transaction Response Time (per time interval)
• Start	C Errors per Second (per time interval)
 Measurement Transaction 	C SLA status determined over the whole run
 Load criteria Thresholds Einich 	Total Hits per run Average Hits (hits/sec) per run Total Throughput (bytes) per run
	C Average Throughput (bytes/sec) per run
	<back next=""> Cancel Help</back>

 In the Load Criteria box, select the relevant load criteria that you want to use—for example, Running Vusers.

To define an SLA without load criteria, select None in the Load Criteria box.

- In the Less than box, set the lower load value range by entering a maximum value for this range. This range is between 0 and the maximum value you entered, but does not include the maximum value.
- To set in-between load value ranges, select Between from the Greater than or equal to/Between combo box and enter minimum and maximum values for the range. The minimum value is included in the range and the maximum value is not.

Load Criteria:	Running Vucers
Load Values:	Image: Less then 5 Image: Between 5 Image: Between 5 Image: Between 10 Image: Between 10

Note: You can set up to three in-between ranges.

To set the upper load value range, select Greater than or equal to from the Greater than or equal to/Between combo box and enter the minimum value for this range. The minimum value is included in this range.

Note: Valid load value ranges are consecutive—there are no gaps in the range—and span all values from zero to infinity.

Running the Scenario

The following procedure outlines how to run a scenario:

- > Open an existing scenario or create a new one.
- > Configure and schedule the scenario.
- Set the results directory.
- \blacktriangleright Run and monitor the scenario.



And once you run the scenario you will get the details like this



Graph Analysis:

During load test scenario execution, Vusers generate result data as they perform their transactions. The Analysis graphs help you determine system performance and provide information about transactions and Vusers. You can compare multiple graphs by combining results from several load test scenarios or merging several graphs into one.

The Report utilities enable you to view a Summary HTML report for each graph or a variety of Performance and Activity reports. You can create a report as a Microsoft Word document, which automatically summarizes and displays the test's significant data in graphical and tabular format.

Analysis graphs are divided into the following categories:

- > Vuser Graphs. Provide information about Vuser states and other Vuser statistics.
- Error Graphs. Provide information about the errors that occurred during the load test scenario.
- Transaction Graphs. Provide information about transaction performance and response time.
- Web Resource Graphs. Provide information about the throughput, hits per second, HTTP responses per second, number of retries per second, and downloaded pages per second for Web Vusers.
- Web Page Diagnostics Graphs. Provide information about the size and download time of each Web page component.
- System Resource Graphs. Provide statistics relating to the system resources that were monitored during the load test scenario using the online monitor.

Starting Analysis

You can open Analysis as an independent application or directly from the Controller. To open Analysis as an independent application, choose one of the following:

- Start > Programs > LoadRunner > Applications > Analysis
- Start > Programs > LoadRunner > LoadRunner, select the Load Testing tab, and then click Analyze Load Tests.

Once you start the Session a Summary report will be displayed

Summary Report:

The Summary report provides general information about load test scenario execution. This report is always available from the Session Explorer or as a tab in the Analysis window. The Summary report lists statistics about the scenario run and provides links

to the following graphs: Running Vusers, Throughput, Hits Per Second, HTTP Responses per Second, Transaction Summary, and Average Transaction Response Time. The appearance of the Summary report and the information displayed will vary depending on whether an SLA (Service Level Agreement) was defined. An SLA defines goals for the scenario. LoadRunner measures these goals during the scenario run and analyzes them in the Summary report.

This Summary Report will have the following details:

Transaction Summary

This section displays a table containing the load test scenario's diagnostics data. Included in this data is a percentile column (x Percent). This column indicates the maximum response time for that percentage of transactions performed during the run. For example, in the table below, the value in the 88 Percent column for browse special books is 8.072. This means that the response time for 88% of the browse special books transactions was less those 8.072 seconds.

Transaction Summa	агу								
Transactions: Total P	assed: 34,9	49 Total I	Failed: 13	1 Total Sto	opped: O	<u>Average R</u>	25ponse	Time	
Transaction Name	SLA Statue	Minimum	Average	Maximum	Std. Deviation	88 Percent	Paes F	ail S	top
browse special books	0	1.078	3.94B	113.754	7.372	9.072	16,673	6	0
credit card validation	0	0.485	3.509	14.06Z	3.453	7.832	14,949	0	0
load main page	Q.	3.625	31.091	117.625	20.732	54.133	894	125	0

Scenario Behavior over Time

This section displays the average errors per second received by the application under test per time interval. For example, 0 means that on average there were zero errors received per second for that time interval, 0+ means that on average there were slightly more than zero errors received, and so on.

Scenario behaviour over time

Transaction: dogbert		• Tim	e rang	ge to o	drill da	ovn Fr	om: 🖸	100:00	:30	Tor	0.00	0:01:1	15 📩
Transaction Name	Tim	e Rang	es										
AUT Errors	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0	0	D	0
Alerts	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0	0	D	0
dogbert			¥	×	¥	×		х		х			
URL1_Action1_14													
	00;00;00	00:00:15	00:00:30	00;00;45	00:01:00	00:01:15	00:01:30	00:01:45	00;02;00	00:02:15	00;02;30	00:02:45	00;03;00
										Analya	ze Trai	nsacti	on

HTTP Responses Summary

This section shows the number of HTTP status codes returned from the Web server during the load test scenario, grouped by status code.

X Worst Transaction

The X Worst Transactions table shows the worst transactions in terms of how often the transactions exceeded the SLA boundary during the run, and by how much.

Transaction Name	Failure Ratio[%] (exceeded time/bransaction duration	n)	Failure Value[%6] (response time/SLA	
dogbert	48.15		4.18 Max exceeding ratio	
Time Interval	Avg exceeding ratio	Мах ехс		
D0:00:3D-00:01:D0	4.25	7.39		
00:01:10-00:01:25	1.95	3.84		
00:01:45-00:01:50	2.61	2,61		
00:02:15-00:02:30	6.9	B.47		

SLA Report

An SLA (Service Level Agreement) defines goals for the load test scenario. LoadRunner measures these goals during the scenario run and analyzes them in the Summary report. The SLA Report shows the succeeded or failed status of all SLAs that were defined for the scenario run.

The Following are the other Graphs that are Displayed

Transaction Response Time under Load

Displays average transaction response times relative to the number of Vusers running at any given point during the load test. This graph helps you view the general impact of Vuser load on performance time and is most useful when analyzing a load test which is run with a gradual load.



Hits Per Second Graph

Displays the number of hits made on the Web server by Vusers during each second of the load test. This graph helps you evaluate the amount of load Vusers generate, in terms of the number of hits.



Running Vusers Graph

Displays the number of Vusers that executed Vuser scripts, and their status, during each second of a load test. This graph is useful for determining the Vuser load on your server at any given moment.



Average Transaction Response Time

Displays the average time taken to perform transactions during each second of the load test. This graph helps you determine whether the performance of the server is within acceptable minimum and maximum transaction performance time ranges defined for your system.



Hits per Second

Displays the number of hits made on the Web server by Vusers during each second of the load test. This graph helps you evaluate the amount of load Vusers generate, in terms of the number of hits.



Throughput

Displays the amount of throughput (in bytes) on the Web server during the load test. Throughput represents the amount of data that the Vusers received from the server at any given second. This graph helps you to evaluate the amount of load Vusers generate, in terms of server throughput.



Transaction Summary

Displays the number of transactions that passed, failed, stopped, or ended with errors.



Average Transaction Response Time

Displays the average time taken to perform transactions during each second of the load test. This graph helps you determine whether the performance of the server is within acceptable minimum and maximum transaction performance time ranges defined for your system.



Page Component Breakdown



Displays the average download time (in seconds) for each Web page and its components.

Windows Resources

Displays a summary of the System Resources usage for each Windows based host.



Connections Per Second

Displays the number of Connections per Second



Downloaded Component Size (KB)

Displays the size of each Web page component. Note that the size displayed includes both the size of the component and its header.



Time to First Buffer Breakdown

Displays each Web page component's relative server/network time (in seconds) for the period of time until the first buffer is successfully received back from the Web server.

